Suhail:
 
I hope that Ryan Welch’s email will suffice in assuring the SSC of Grounds’ commitment.
 
Further, attached is a maintenance plan crafted by Barb Schleicher.  The college’s commitment to it is described below.
 
Tracy McCabe
Assistant Dean for External and Alumni Affairs
College of Business at ILLINOIS
p 217.333.4093
 
Grounds is willing, to the best of their ability, to work in conjunction with the College of Business and Barb Schleicher in maintaining the native plantings at BIF using the sustainable practices prescribed.  I will however have to make it clear that Grounds will not be able to burn the area at any time as our folks are not trained in prairie burns and are not willing to take on the liability.  Instead a once a year early spring mowing can be done.  I also have concerns with the grass borders creating a non-sustainable planting.  Grass is very invasive and it would take a lot of labor on a yearly basis to keep it from spreading into the prairie plants.
Thanks, 
Ryan Welch 
Superintendent of Grounds 
F&S
From: McCabe, Tracy 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2010 6:11 PM
To: 'Welch, Ryan B (Facilities & Services)'
Cc: Freeman, George; Schleicher, Barbara A; Abram, Tom J (Facilities & Services)
Subject: Business Building Prairie - Action Required
Importance: High
 

Ryan:
 
Before I get into detail, I need to remind you that the Student Sustainability Committee is requiring written correspondence from F&S Grounds by TOMORROW, April 15 confirming that Grounds intends to maintain the BIF landscape as of August 16, 2010 in a manner consistent with its sustainable design.  That letter/email can be sent to Suhail Barot at sustainability-committee@illinois.edu with a copy to me.
 
Barb was gracious to write a paper including recommendations and guidelines for maintenance on BIF native plantings, to include the Prairie Garden.  Here is my summary and remarks:
         The College will address the storm water and roof spill-over with F&S: it is not the responsibility of Grounds to resolve those issues.
         The College supports the planting of an 8-12” turf/sod around walkways in the courtyard area – creating an edge to the meadow that can be mowed regularly
         The College is creating educational signage
         The College will arrange for a meeting with Grounds and the current contractor to address transfer of knowledge before Grounds takes over in August 2010
         Effective August 16, 2010, Grounds will attend to: watering, weed control, burn (if applicable), and standard maintenance as prescribed by Barb and to be determined through future discussions.
 
Please confirm that you will be able to send the letter, as funding for the prairie absolutely depends on it.
 
Thank you for your support.
 
Tracy McCabe
Assistant Dean for External and Alumni Affairs
College of Business at ILLINOIS
p 217.333.4093
University of Illinois—Business Instructional Facility
Native Plantings—Maintenance Suggestions
Prepared by Barbara Schleicher, Landscape Designer Allerton Park and Retreat Center

April, 2010

I. Introduction

A. Purpose
This paper’s purpose is to provide a basic guideline for the maintenance of the native plantings around the auditorium of the University of Illinois’ Business Instructional Facility (BIF). 

B. Goals
It is a misconception that native plant landscapes are maintenance free. Such landscapes can be lower maintenance, however, that would depend on the intent of the landscape design. Whether the site’s planting is intended to be an aesthetic display of native grasses and forbs and/or a functional application of plant material in the landscape, each would require a specific approach to maintenance of the site. The goal for this site will relate directly to the intended landscape design—functionality with high visibility to students, visitors and donors.
II. Site

A. Location

The site of BIF was for many years a parking lot with adjacent turf lawn (Military access). The land probably has a diverse seed bank for not only the seed from the turf grass but common weed seeds found in the area’s environment (dandelion, ground ivy, violets, crab grass, yellow nutsedge, clover, etc.) A proper installation program would attempt to minimize the emergence of these weed seed prior to planting the native plants. The future weed control program will need to be considered in a short and long term maintenance strategy.
B. Erosion Control

Several issues need to be addressed at the BIF site to ensure that a maintenance program can be successful.

1. Capturing the stormwater on site (sidewalks, roof run-off, etc). Part of the original design of the sedge meadow and bio-swale by Wolf design firm and the credits for the LEED Certification was the capturing of stormwater run-off on site. This run-off would occur on the sidewalks that surround the meadow, the roof gutters/spouts and ground surface run-off. As much of this runoff should be capture and directed into the site.
2. Roof storm water spill-over (erosion of soil along building foundation)

Last fall, 2009, it was observed during a rain storm that roof stormwater runoff was running over the edge of the lowest point of the auditorium roof into the sedge meadow. As this is where the water should be going, it is obvious that it is falling in such a way as to erode the soil from around the buildings foundation. Similarly, the run-off from the wall sprouts is creating erosion furrows in the soil in the deepest part of the meadow. In both cases this erosion needs to be addressed in order for the meadow and swale to function properly.

3. Overflow outlet periodic clean-out. At the lowest points of the bioswale, there are overflow outlets. These need to be checked periodically and cleaned out in order for them function properly.
C. Foot traffic
For design and maintenance purposes it would be best if there were an 8-12” strip of turf or mowed area along the sidewalks. This would give an edge along the meadow which would provide a visual cue to visitors as well as keeping grasses and forbs from ‘hanging’ over the walkway.
D. Signage

Public education of the use of native plants is a must in this setting. So much of the campus landscape is formal with standard ornamental plants and arrangements. This site is a different landscape that can be as pleasing to the eye as some of the other campus designs. Viewers need to know what to except from the native plants.  Signage, publicity, publications would be very helpful toward this end. In addition, a design is only as good as the maintenance of that design.

The BIF building and landscape is quite unique on this campus as well as in central Illinois. Some sort of signage, publication, etc. should be available to visitors to inform them of the University’s efforts to be good steward of the environment.

III. Landscape Design Intent

A. Wolff Design Firm intent and installer instructions

Normally, a design firm will have as a part of its specifications, maintenance directions to the installer, especially if the installer will maintain the landscape for a certain amount of time, in this case, two years for installation completion. This should be checked into. This would be very important with regards to the site and soil preparation and the crucial first year of native plant growth and weed control. This would also be informative to the University’s Grounds maintenance group once they take over in August 2010.
B. Visibility and Functionality

If functionality and visibility is the intent of the design and certification, then the level of maintenance would be fairly high. This area must handle efficiently, the stormwater that run-offs into the bio-swale. In addition, the site is along very busy walkway into the building as well as passing by the structure. Finally, it is the entrance to ‘The Green Building’ on campus. It not only needs to be functioning well but needs have a certain ‘eye appeal’ to visitors and potential donors. This was obvious from what the design firm had specified.

I would add that a strip of turf or mowed plant material, previously mentioned, would be an addition that would help with viewers visual cues that they are use to in the campus design.

IV. Maintenance Staff

A. Taking over from Contractor

It has been determined that the University’s Grounds group will be taking over the maintenance of the site in August of 2010. Prior to this ‘changing of hands’ I would recommend that the Grounds group become familiar with what are the native plants and what are the weeds that are found in this landscape. If photos of the plants are necessary, that would be beneficial. They should also know what the previous maintenance regimen consisted of, and not just hearsay…observe.

            The ‘best of all worlds’ scenario would be to have a survey of what actually exist  

            when they take over the maintenance of the site. 

B. Second and Third year growing season

The Grounds group will be coming in at the end of the second year of growth. The majority of the plants that survived transplant should have emerged and thrived. There should also be a fairly good idea of what weeds will generally be emerging and growing in this area. The site has also gone through a year or so worth of regular moisture (rain, snow, etc) and the pattern for drainage, erosion should be identified. If not, this needs to be done.

Knowing all these features (and probably a few more) will be helpful in determining the next year’s maintenance program and future years’ strategies. In addition, what might have been missing from the previous maintenance program can be identified and amended in the future.
V. Short Term Maintenance Strategy (annual)
A. Water, Light and Nutrients

Native plants are living organisms and require basic elements for survival and growth. Water, appropriate light requirements and nutrients will go a long way in ensuring successful growth. Once native plants have been established, as in this case after two years of growth, regular water may not be necessary unless there is an extended drought period during the seasons. Native plants on this site have been selected for their specific characteristics of surviving water and dry periods. However, even the strongest of plants will need some water in extreme drought conditions. Appropriate hardwood mulch would be beneficial to the plants and soil on this site. Mulch would help with maintaining a cooler soil temperature, retaining moisture in the soil for longer periods of time and can help suppress weed development.

Invasive weed species can often out compete and shade out native plants in their early stages of development. Aggressive weed control is important to ensure the biodiversity of native plants that was originally designed. 

Since this site is not only using plants as functional elements of the landscape but as ornamental features, maintenance might include slow-release fertilization in the growing season. This would be most applicable to the forbs if the soil once tested shows signs of nutrient depletion. Knowing how the soil was prepared for installation would be helpful in this matter.
B. Annual Weed control

Knowing how the previous company controlled the weeds will be helpful in devising the third year’s weed control program. Generally, hand weeding would be preferred to any type of chemical or mowing regimen since this is a small area. By year three the native plants should be established and should be filling in the bare spots. Spot spraying of herbicides and the potential for drift would be detrimental to the surrounding desired plants. Mowing would not be advised if flower and seed heads are desired. Most native plants that have been specified for this site are setting their flowers in May, June and July and show their beauty in June, July , August or later.

C. Infill planting

Native plants will drift as their seeds are blown or moved around by wildlife. Where you thought certain plants would come up one year, may be different the next. Monitoring of this is important. If certain plants are desired in a specific area, infill planting or seeding may be necessary.
VI. Long Term Maintenance Strategy (Multi-years)
A. Prescribed burn or not

Burning of native plants in the spring or fall can be quite beneficial to their existence and health. However, it may not be possible at the location of the BIF site. The Grounds groups will have to determine their expertise and knowledge of prescribed burns. This is usually done after three or four years of growth and sufficient thatch has built up around the native plants. 

If burning is not an option, mowing and /or thatch removal in the spring would be beneficial to native plants. Removal of this thatch will allow light and moisture to reach the soil surface and aid in seed and root development.

B. Aggressive Weed Control Program

This is a must for maintenance of the BIF native plant site. Establishing a program that all staff would be familiar with is crucial for a healthy, well functional garden. If native plants do not have to compete with weeds and or exotic plant material, they will produce beautiful bloom and seed head and create the desire landscape originally designed.
VII. Sources

Prairie Moon Nursery

www.prairiemoon.com
2010 Catalog and Cultural Guide pp 60-65

JF New Nursery

www.jfnew.com
Webinar-“Maintaining a Native Landscape”

Possibility Place Nursery

www.possibilityplace.com
Native Plant Care

Illinois Department of Natural Resources

Prairie Establishment and Landscaping
Natural Heritage Technical Publication #2

Revised 2003—“Maintenance”-pp 30
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